CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010




CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

Prepared By

The Department of Finance

Erika Hobson
Finance Manager



CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

TAEBLE OF CONTENTS
Page
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Letter Of TranSMULLAL. ... oot ettt s e s et et s et 1
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial RepoOrting ... ..coovev e eeeeeeeeee oo e 6
Organization CRET ... ..ottt e ee s et e e et s e et 7
PrNCIPA] OFfICIAIS ......ecevicieie ettt e es e s ee e st ee s e setee et eeeet oo 8
FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent AUGIIOI'S REPOM .. ....c..veoiiieeeeet ettt es et st e es o s eree s 9
Management's DiSCUSSION &N ANAIYSIS .........vciiieiiieeeeeeer e ses et es e e s e s ee e ee s 11
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement Of NEt ASSEES ...t ee e en e s e ee e, 20
StAtemMENnt Of ACHVIIES ..ottt r e ee et es e 21
Balance Sheet — Governmental FUNAS.........o ettt 22
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the
StAEMENT OF NBEASSEIS ...t et ee et e e e et en e res s 23
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance — GovernmMental FUNGS ..........oco..veeuieereceeccce oot e e s st s e ee e, 24
~Reconciliation-of the Statement of Revenues; Expenditures and Changes fn o wmm s
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of ACHVIIES ....o.vvoveveev e, 25
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances — Budgetary and ACIUA! ......ocoeiieeeee ettt e n oo, 26
Statement of Net Assets — Proprietary FUNAS ..ottt eee e enee e er e 27
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund
Net ASSets — Proprietary FUNGS........coooiiiiec ettt aee e ene e et s e en e 28
Statement of Cash Flows — Proprigtary FUNAS..........cc.o.ooevivieiieeeeceeeee et eee s eeseee e 29
Naotes to the Financial SIEEMENTS. .....c..o.oiieriecece s ere e e e s e 30
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Employee Retirement Plan Schedule of Funding Progress for TMRS......ooveeee oo oo, 51
COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES
Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Governmental FUNAS ...........co.ooeeveiieeeee oo 52
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance — Nonmajor Governmental FUNAS ..........cooo vt eee e ee e eenes e 53
General Debt Service Fund — Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances — Budgetary and AGIUAL...............ccoeeeueiieeeeeeeeeeree s eese e e eevees st 54

Hotel/Motel Tax Special Revenue Fund — Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances — Budgetary and ACtUL.............oco.oooreoe oo eeeer e 55



CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONT'D.)

Page
COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES (CONT’D.)
Court Technology Special Revenue Fund - Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances - Budgetary and ACIUAL........c.o.oooiiii i 56
Court Security Special Revenue Fund - Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances - Budgetary and ACHUAL............ocoioeoreeeereeeeeee et eeeeeeeeeereses s 57
School Safety Special Revenue Fund - Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances - Budgetary and ACHUAL............cocoviveiee oo, 58
Crossing Guard Special Revenue Fund - Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances - Budgetary and AGHUEL............o.ooivovieeeeieeeeeeeeee e 59
Grant Special Revenue Fund — Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances — Budgetary and ACIUEL..............ocovevoiciee oo, 60
General Capital Projects Fund - Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes In Fund Balances - Budgetary @nd ACIUAL..........c.oocviviciiiiee et e ees e ereeeeens 61
Landfill Capital Projects Fund — Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances — Budgetary and ACKUAL..........cocoiiii i es s 62
Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds - Jackshoro Economic

Development COrPOratioN.........o.i ettt et eeeaeene e s eeseneseaeanens 63
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement
-of Net-Assets — Jacksboro Economic Development Corporation i i inn i, 64
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and

Actual - Governmental Funds - Jacksboro Economic Development Corporation ...............ceeceveen... 85
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of

Activities — Jacksboro Economic Development COrporation ............cocovveeoeevee e ereeeesieeeeeereeerersarees 66

STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED)
Statistical Section NarTatiVe. .. ... ..o oo e et aaa 10 BT
Net Assets by Component — Last Five FISCaI YBAIS ......oooio oo e ee s e 68
Changes in Net Assets — Last Five FISCAI YAS ......covv it ee e eee e e ee s s 89
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds — Last Ten FISCaI YRAIS ...coveoveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees e e s ese e 71
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds — Last Ten Fiscal Years.......ccocoveveevvveeeeeeeeovreenns 72
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property —

LaSE TEN FISCAI YBAMS ..ottt ettt et bttt e e e e vt e e e e see s e eeseaes 73
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates — Last Ten Fiscal Years. ...ocoovevvvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeee v, 74
Principal Property Tax Payers — Current Year and Ning Years AQO.........o.voceeveeeeeoeeeeereeeeeeessreeeeoe 75
Property Tax Levies and Collections — Last Five FISCal YEAIS ....ovvoe oo eeeeee s e eereereenn e 76
Water and Sewer Sales Revenue - Last Ten Fiscal Years ..o 77
Ratio of Qutstanding Debt by Type - Last Ten FiSCal YEars .......ocovoovveeeeeeeeeveeee e 78
Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding - Last Ten Fiscal YBars.......co.ovvevveeeeeeeeeeereeeeeereavens 79
Direct and Overlapping Governmental ACtivities DEBE .........c...oovivoeiiie e 80
Demographic and Economic Statistics - Last Ten Calendar YEars .......cococvvveeeeveeeeoveeeeeeeeeeenenn. 81

Principal Employers - Current Year and Prior YEa.......coivii e 82



CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE FiSCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

JABLE OF CONTENTS (CONT'D.)

STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED) (CONT’D)

Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program -
Last Five Fiscal Years

INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE SECTION

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Paae



INTRODUCTORY SECTION



March 2, 2011
The Honorable Mayor, Aldermen, and the Citizens of the City of Jacksboro, Texas

Chapter 103 of the Texas Municipal Code requires that a municipality shall have its records and
accounts audited annually and shall have an annual financial statement prepared based on the
audit. This statutory requirement is addressed in the City of Jacksboro, Texas' (City) financial
management plan, which includes the objective that a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) will be prepared by the Finance Department. The Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report includes a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and audited in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. Accordingly, the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the City of Jacksboro, Texas for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2010, is hereby issued.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all
the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making
representations, the City has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is
designed both to protect the City’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient
reliable information for the preparation of the City’s financial statements in conformity with
GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City’s
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather
than absolute, assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatements.
As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is
complete and reliable in all material respects.

The City’s financial statements have been audited by MWH Group, P.C., independent certified
public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reascnable assurance that
the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010, are free of
material misstatements. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that
there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City’s financial
statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010, are fairly presented in conformity with
GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial
section of this report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of a Management Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditor.
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Profile of the City

The City of Jacksboro, Texas, the county seat of Jack County, was incorporated in 1875 and is a
General Law “A” municipal corporation under Texas law. The City occupies approximately 5.8
square miles and serves a population of approximately 4,700. As a municipal corporation, the
City is empowered by state statutes to levy a tax on real and business personal property located
within the corporate boundaries. Among its additional powers is that of annexation to extend the
corporate limits when deemed appropriate.

A total of 970 acres has been voluntarily annexed into the city for business, commercial, and
residential development. The Jacksboro Economic Development Corporation intends to develop
a corporate business park on approximately 270 acres pursuant to Section 4B of the Development
Corporation Act of 1979, as amended. The site offers ideal transportation access to the
convergence of U.S. Highway 380, U.S. Highway 281, and State Highways 199 and 114.

The City of Jacksboro, Texas operates under the Aldermanic form of government where
policymaking and legislative authority are vested in a governing council consisting of the Mayor
and five (5) Aldermen (the “City Council”). The City Counci! is responsible for adopting the
annual program of services (budget), appointing committees, employing the City Attorney, City
Manager, City Secretary and Municipal Judge, as well as enacting ordinances and establishing the
tax rate.

The City Manager is responsible for appointing the various department directors, implementing
the policies and ordinances adopted by the City Council, and managing the day-to-day operations
of the City. The City Manager also serves as liaison to the Jacksboro Economic Development
Corporation as an ex officio member. The Mayor and Council Members are elected at-large to
serve two (2) year terms.

The basic financial statements of the City include all governmental activities, functions, and
organizations for which it is financially accountable pursuant to and as defined by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Based on those criteria no other
governmental organizations are included in this report.

Services Provided

The City of Jacksboro is a full service city and provides the following: maintenance of streets
and infrastructure; parks and recreation and cultural activities; public safety including emergency
management, fire and police; solid waste services through a third party contract; and, water and
wastewater distribution systems. It is anticipated that the City will be developing plans for a new
water plant within the next two to three (2 to 3) years.

Economic Conditions and Outlook

The current economic climate is substantial as plans for business, commercial, and residential
development are being prepared. We have begun to see a decline in the oil and gas exploration
activities that have been a benefit to the City in the past. Consequently, these declines and the
current state of the economy have caused us to see a decline in sales tax revenues for FY 2010.

An estimated 10,000 plus vehicles per day (Texas Department of Transportation) pass through the
center of downtown. Jacksboro is equidistant to Fort Worth and Wichita Falls and is the transfer



point for two (2) U.S. Highways (281, 380) and four (4) State Highways (59, 114, 148, 199).
Ease of access is a contributing factor to new business growth.

Local Economy

The City currently enjoys a favorable economic environment as seventeen {17) new businesses
have located here since May, 2003. Fort Richardson State Park hosts an estimated 180,000
visitors annually and contributes approximately $900,000 to the local economy. The City
maintains two (2) lakes, Lake Jacksboro and Lost Creek Reservoir, which are primary
contributors to an expanding recreation base.

Tourism is the third largest industry in the State of Texas and Jacksboro is the recipient of those
dollars based upon hunting and fishing and enhanced recreation facilities. That includes adult
and youth baseball facilities, a state grant funded playground (Texas Parks & Wildlife) and
growth in league play due to increased interest countywide.

The City is working closely with the Jacksboro Chamber of Commerce and the Jacksboro
Economic Development Corporation to restore historic facilities to attract new business and
tourism. This includes the restoration of the former Gulf Texas & Western Railroad Depot which
will become a tourism/visitor center. Also, the restoration of the former Jacksboro Opera House
and associated complexes will provide a new entertainment venue with opportunities for local
commercial and retail development.

Funding for this work is the result of the development of the Community Advancement
Foundation of the Chamber, a 501(c) 3 tax exempt organization. Restoration efforts have spurred
local interest in redevelopment of existing structures to provide additional space for new business
and professional office services.

General Fund budgeted expenditures were decreased in FY 2009-2010 in order to maintain
adequate fund balances. Due to increased maintenance and operations costs, the property tax rate
was increased from $0.92733 to $0.9837 per one hundred dollars of assessed valuation. The 2010
certified taxable value of real and personal property is $124,745,190. This is an 8.4% decrease
below the 2009 tax year value of $136,235,960.

Accounting System and Budgetary Control

The City’s accounting records for general governmental operations are maintained on a modified
accrual basis, with the revenues being recorded when available and measurable and expenditures
being recorded when the services or goods are received and the liabilities incurred. Accounting
records for the City’s utilities are maintained on the accrual basis.

In developing and maintaining the City’s accounting system, consideration is given to the
adequacy of the internal control structure. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition; and (2) the reliability of financial records for preparing financial
staternents and maintaining accountability of assets. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and
(2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.



All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework. We believe that the City’s
internal controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper
recording of financial transactions.

The annual Program of Services (budget) serves as the foundation of the City’s financial planning
and control. State law requires the annual Program of Services to be adopted by the City Council
before the start of the fiscal year. The proposed budget must be submitted to the City Secretary no

later than thirty (30) days before the date set for a public hearing by the City Council to consider
its adoption.

Prior to adoption, the City Manager and city department directors prepare program expenditure
estimates for the remainder of the current fiscal year and for the upcoming fiscal year, and these
are compared to estimates of revenue for the same periods. Adjustments are made to the program
expenditure and expense estimates as necessary to ensure that the proposed Program of Services
is presented within total estimated income and available beginning fund resources.

The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between line items within any fund.

However, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City
Council.

Budgetary control has been established at the fund level. Financial reports are produced showing
budget and actual expenditures by line item and are distributed monthly to the departmental
management and to others upon request.

Individual line items are reviewed and analyzed for budgetary compliance. Personnel
expenditures are monitored and controlled at the position level and capital expenditures are
monitored and controlled item by item. Revenue budgets are reviewed monthly.

A budget-to-actual comparison for the General Fund is provided later in this report.

Debt Management. The City funds its capital program from a combination of current revenues
and capital debt. Street improvements are funded by a combination of capital debt and capital
improvement fees. Annual debt service requirements for general obligation debt are well below
the statutory legal limit of $1.50 per $100 assessed property value.

Cash Management, The City utilizes its investment policy in the management of all cash. The
City’s investment policy embraces current state regulations on the investment of public funds and
authorizes the City to invest in certificates of deposit from the bank depository, direct obligations
of the United States Government, obligations of an agency of the United States Government and
local government investment pools. State law requires public funds deposits be collateralized.
Collateral is monitored to ensure that the market value of the pledged securities equals or exceeds
the related deposit or investment balance. All collateral shall be subject to verification by the
Finance Director and the City’s independent auditors,

Tax Appraisal/Collection Responsibilities. Under Texas law enacted in 1979, and subsequent
revisions of the State Property Tax Code, the appraised value of taxable property in Jacksboro is
established by the Jack County Appraisal District. The City of Jacksboro and other taxing
jurisdictions in Jack County provide a pro-rata share of the budgeted expenditures incurred by the
Appraisal District, based on individual levy. The Jack County Tax Assessor-Collector provides
tax collection services for the City and other taxing jurisdictions in Jack County.



Risk Management, A city government is constantly exposed to risk of all kinds, including
damage to public property and liability resulting from injury to persons and damage to their
property. As a means of providing reasonable protection against these risks, the City participates
in the Texas Municipal League Joint Self-Insurance Fund for its property loss and liability
coverage. As a member of the program, the City is provided the most extensive protection
available to Texas cities in the areas of comprehensive general liability, auto liability, losses to
municipal building and contents, and law enforcement and public officials’ liability coverage.

Awards. In accordance with the City’s financial management plan, the City of Jacksboro was
awarded the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
Certificate of Achievement in Financial Reporting for its Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009,

The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the
highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The current comprehensive
annual financial report was prepared with the objective of meeting the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and is being submitted to GFOA to determine its eligibility for the
certificate.

Acknowledgements. The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not be accomplished
without the efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the City. We would like to
express our appreciation to all staff members who assisted and contributed to its preparation. We
would also like to thank the Mayor and City Council members for their interest and support in
planning and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible and progressive
manner.

Respectfully Submitteds” .
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Mayor Director of Finance
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CERTIFIED PUBLI
CONSULTANTS

Independent Auditor's Report

City Council
City of Jackshoro, Texas
Jacksboro, Texas

Members of the City Council:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Jacksboro, Texas as of and for the year ended September 30, 2010, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Jacksboro, Texas' management.  Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Jacksboro, Texas, as of September 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund, for the year

then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. '

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 2, 2011,
on our consideration of the City of Jacksboro, Texas' internal control over financial reporting and on aur
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and
other matters, The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of
our audit.
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis and the Employee Retirement Plan Schedule of Funding Progress for TMRS
listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufiicient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Jacksboro, Texas' financial statementis as a whole. The introductory section,
combining and individual fund statements and schedules, and statistical section are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The combining and
individual fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of managemant and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The introductory
and statistical sections have not been subjected fo the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them.

MWH GROUP, P.C.

Wichita Falls, Texas
March 2, 2011
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of The City of Jacksboro, Texas (City) we offer readers of the City’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2010,

Financial Highlights

» The assets of the City exceeded its liabilitles at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$8,168,853 (net assets).

» Governmental net assets increased $662,595. This change in net assets is primarily attributed to:
1) the budgeted annual transfer-in to governmental activities from the business-type activities for
administrative support of $350,000, 2) the budgeted transfer-in to governmental activities from the
business-type activities for the business-type activities portion of debt service in the amount of
$468,732 and 3) the contribution from the JEDC of the renovated Gulf Texas and Weastern
Railroad Depat.

» At the close of the current fiscal year, the City’'s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $686,470, a decrease of $163,212 in comparison with the prior year. The
decrease is primarily due to $81,488 of expenditures in the capital projects fund. Of the combined
ending balances, $225,823 is unreserved in the general fund, $186,270 is reserved in the general
debt service fund, $100,438 is reserved in the special revenue funds, $171,140 is reserved in the
capital projects fund, $2,397 is reserved in the landfill capital project fund, and $402 is resarved in
the general fund.

» At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the general fund was $225,823
or 7.9% percent of total general fund expenditures.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial
statements. The City of Jacksboro’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components:

1) Government-wide Financial Statements
2) Fund Financial Staternents, and
3) Notes to the Financial Statements

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.

Government-wide financial statements

The goverhment—wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
finances of the City of Jacksboro, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of The City of Jacksboro's assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decrsases in net
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of The City of Jacksboro is
improving or deteriorating.

112 W. Belknap © Jacksboro, Texas 76458 » 940-567-6321 » Fax 940-567-2590



The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periads {e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues {(governmental activities) from other functions that
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-
type activities). The governmental activities of the City include legislative, general government, public
safety, streets, and culture and recreation. The business-type activities of the City includes the water,
sewer, and solid waste utilities.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary
government), but also a legally separate Jacksboro Economic Development Corporation (JEDC) for which
the City is financially accountable. Financial information for the JEDC is presented as a discrete
component and is not included with the primary government . The JEDC is presented in a separate
column in the government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements and the
JEDC fund financial statements can be found in the pages that follow this discussion.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonsirate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the
funds of the City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. Unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources,
as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information
may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and gavernmental activities.

The City maintains three major governmental funds and seven nonmajor governmental funds. Information
is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the major general, debt service, and capital
projects funds. The nonmajor funds are summarized in the other governmental funds column. The
nonmajor funds combining schedules are included in the Combining and Individual Statements and
Schedules section of this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for the general funds, special revenue funds and utility
fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate
compliance with this budget. This comparison can be found in the Fund Statements section of this report.
The Notes to the Financial Statements, including Note 3, are an integral part of this statement.
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Proprietary funds

The City of Jacksboro, Texas maintains a single enterprise fund, the water, sewer, and solid waste utility
fund.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City uses the enterprise fund to account for its water, sewer,
and solid waste operations.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide information for the water and sewer
enterprise fund which is a major fund of the City.

Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements. More detailed information on long-term debt activity
and capital asset activity is presented in the relevant disclosures in the notes to the financial statements.

The notes to the financial statements can be found on the pages immediately following the financial
statements.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

Net assets may serve over time as a usefui indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of
the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $8,168,853 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

The largest portion (84.7%) of the City’s net assets reflects its investment in capital assets. The City uses
these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The following table is a comparative summary of net assets as of September 30, 2010 and 2009

TABLE | NET ASSETS

Gavernmesntal Activities Business-type Actlvities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Current and other assets § 1208018 % 334735 & 191686 & 1,855,639 & 3,124,837 § 3,202,995
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 8,666,047 8,544,213 6,844,806 6,693,248 15,510,953 15,237,461
Total assets 9,874,063 5,891,569 8,761,722 B,548,887 18,635,785 18,440,456
Curent liabilitles 264,847 258,515 533,217 162,157 797,864 420,771
Long-term lizbtlities outstanding 7,460,436 8,146,669 2,208,632 2,270,728 9,669,068 10,417,358
Totz liabilities 7,725,083 8,405,184 2,741,845 2,432,986 10,466,931 10,838,170
Net assats
invested in capital assets, net of related dabt 1,471,608 769,804 5,450,477 5,598,629 6,922,086 6,368,433
Restricted pet assets
Capital projects 2,397 2,383 - - 2,397 2,303
Deht retirement 186,270 147,402 - B 185,270 147,402
Specific purposes 100,840 138,338 - - 100,840 138,338
Unrestricted 387,864 428,448 569,398 517,272 957,260 945,720
Total net assets 5 2148980 S5 1485385 5 5019873 S 115501 §  B,168853 5 7,602,280

An additional portion of the City's net assets (3.5%) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used.
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Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased net assets by $662,595, and business-type activities decreased net
assets by $96,028, for a total increase in total net assets of $566,567. The key elements of this City wide
increase are shown in the following table:

TABLEII
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Tatal
2010 2008 2010 2009 2010 2008
Revenues:
Program revenues
Charges far senvices 5 1898247 5  23681% 5 2,735,540 2,622,557 5 2934787 § 2,858,476
Operating grants and contributions 27,720 §9,549 - - 27,720 58,540
Capital grants and contributions 512,667 199,827 162,620 76,888 675,307 278,726
General revenues

Property taxes 1,481,602 1,072,011 - - 1,281,692 1,072,011
Franchise taxes 717,274 G4B,050 - - 717,274 948,050
Sales taxes 363,473 383,047 - - 353,473 383,047
Interest 4,670 11,054 2,859 6,300 7.538 17,354
Miscellaneaus 51,013 108,142 1,795 - 52,808 108,142
Total revenues 3,147,785 3,018,568 2,902,814 2,705,757 €,050,599 5,724,355

Expenses;
Legislative 31,067 32,305 - - 31,067 32,305
General government 812723 901,048 - - 912,723 901,048
Public safety 1,147,005 1,249,648 - - 1,147,085 1,248,648
Straeis 326,458 537,853 - - 326,458 537,893
Culture and recreation 445,787 452,765 - - 446,787 452,765
Interest on debt service 438,792 489,585 - - 438,792 460,885
Waler and sewer utilitles - - 2,180,110 1,907,360 2,180,110 1,907,260
Total expenses 3,203,622 3,643,644 2.180,110 1,507,260 5.484,032 §,550,904
Increase (decrease) In net assets before transfars {156,137) {625,045) 722,704 798,457 566,567 173,451
Net transfers a1a,732 576,594 (B1B 730) {576,554 - -
Increase (decrease) In nef assets £62,505 {48,451) (86,028) 221,803 566,567 173,451
Net assets - baginning 1,486,385 1,534,838 6,115,801 5,893,968 7.602,286 7,428,834
Net assets - ending $ 2148880 § 1,486,385 8 8015872 § B115801 5 8168BP53 § 7,602,285

The $566,567 increase in net assets for the City is represented by the degree in which ongoing revenues
have exceeded expenses. The key factor in the increase in net assets (before transfers) of the business-
type activities was the increase in capital contributions due to a grant for improvements in the water and
sewer system. The key factors in the decrease in net assets (before transfers) of the governmental
activities are the decrease in charges for services and franchise and sales taxes.

Revenues by source — governmental activities

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, and charges for services provide 81.0% of the revenues for
the governmental activities. The chart on the following page provides a graphic representation of the
City's revenues by source:
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Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

Charges for
services B Property taxes
Franchise taxes 6.3%
22 8% Contributions/ Sales taxes
grants
17.2% O Franchise taxes
O Charges forservices
Salestaxes Interest
11.2% 0.1% & Contributions/ grants
. Interest
Miscellaneous
1.6% .
Property taxes B Miscellaneous
40.7%

Expenses and program revenues — governmental activities

Public safety, general government, and interest on debt service provide 75.7% of the expenses for the

governmental activities. The chart below provides a graphic representation of the City’s expenses and
any directly related revenues by source.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities
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$1,000,000
5800,000
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Revenues by source — business-type activities

Water, sewer and solid waste charges for services account for 94.2% of the revenue. This is comparable
to 2009 income.

Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities

Solid waste ‘bt
charges for Contributions/ WAS charges for
services grants services
17.7% 5.6%

B Solid waste charges
for services

Interest O Contributions/
WA&S charges 0.1% grants
for services

O |Interest
76.5%

B Miscellaneous
Miscellanecus
0.1%

Expenses and program revenues — business-type activities

Business-type activities decreased the City's net assets by $96,028. Other major non-operating revenues
of the water and sewer fund were capital grants of $162,620, capital improvement fees of $55,815, and
interest income of $2,859.

Expenses and Program Revenues
Business-type Activities

$2,200,000
§2,000,000
$1,800,000
§1,600,000
$1,400,000
$1,200,000
$1,000,000
$800,000
$600,000
$400,000
$200,000
$0

= Revenues

| Expenses

Water and sewer utilities Solid Waste

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds
The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing

requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's
net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.
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At the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $686,470, a decrease of $163,212 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 32.9% of
this total amount, $225,823, constitutes unreserved, undesignated fund balance in the general fund,
which is available for spending at the City's discretion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved or
designated to indicate it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed as
follows: 1) debt service $186,270, 2) hotel/ motel tax $71,048, 3) court technology $24,286, 4) grant
fund ($830), 5) court security $260, 8) school safety $442, 7) crossing guard fund $5,232, 8) capital
projects fund $171,140, 9) landfill CIP fund $2,397, and 10) general fund $402.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved,
undesignated fund balance of the general fund was $225,823. As a measure of the general fund's
liquidity, it may be useful to compare unreserved fund balance to total general fund expenditures.
Unreserved fund balance represents 7.9% of total general fund expenditures.

The fund balance of the general fund decreased $84,155 during the current fiscal year. Key factors and
significant items included in this decrease are as follows:

» Property tax revenue increased significantly, but this was offset by a decline in municipal court
fines and franchise and sales tax revenues,

* There was a signifcant increase in govermental expenditures in the public safety and street
departments due to increases in salaries, supplies, and street repairs, including curbs and alleys.

e There was a decrease in miscellaneous income, which includes federal income received by the
City in 20089 for a building purchased in 2008.

 There was a significant increase in donations due to the contribution of the Gulf Texas and
Western Railroad Depot, valued at $507,182, from the JEDC. This amount was offset by capital
outlay for the general government of the same amount.

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $186,270, all of which is designated for the payment of
debt service. The net increase in fund balance during the current year in the debt service fund was
$38,868. Although the precentage of property taxes allocated to debt service was decreased from 2009
to 2010 from 66.8% to 51.7%, the amount transferred from the utility fund increased from $226,594 to
$468,732. Debt service expenditures in 2010 were comparable to 2009, with an increase in principle
payments and a decrease in interest payments.

The capital projects fund has a total fund balance of $171,140, which is designated for capital
expenditures. The net decrease in 2010, was $80,029. This is due to the purchase of a new roof for city
hall, and increased repairs and maintenance costs for general government, public safety, and streets.

Proprietary Funds

The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the water and sewer fund at the end of the current fiscal year amounted to
$569,396. Net assets decreased $96,028 from the prior year. Factors regarding the finances were
addressed in the discussion of the City's business-type activities,

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Revenues were $444,184 higher than the City's budgeted projections, and expenditures were more than
the final budget by $581,293. The differences were primarily due to the donation of the Gulf Texas and
Western Railroad Depot by the JEDC to the general fund, which is included in donations revenue and
capital outlay expenses.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capifal Assels

The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of September
30, 2010 amounts to $15,510,953 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets

17



includes land, buildings and improvements, the Lost Creek Dam and Reservoir, streets, machinery and
equipment, water and sewer system, and construction in progress.

TABLE I}
CITY OF JACKSBORO CAPITAL ASSETS (NET OF DEPRECIATION)

Governmental Actlvitles Business-type Actlvitles Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2008

Land $ 205014 5 205014 3 - 8 - 8 205,014 5 205,014
Construction in progress - 40,877 294,807 53,320 294,907 94,197
Buildings and improvements 1,557,925 1,084,842 - - 1,557,925 1,084,842
Lost Cresk Dam & Reservoir 5,679,956 5,847,067 - - §,679,956 5,847 067
Streets 753,039 B43,317 - - 793,039 843,317
Waler and sewer system - - 6,246,677 6,395,172 6,246,677 5,395,172
Furniture and fixturas - - - 2270 - 2,270
Machinery & equipment 430,113 513,086 303,322 242,485 733,435 755,582

Tolal S B,666,047 5 8.544,213 & 5844906 § 6693248 & 15,510,853 5 15,237,461

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in note 4.A.4 of this report.

Long-term Liabilities

At the end of the 2010 fiscal year, the City had total long-term liabilities of $9,669,068.

TABLE IV
CITY OF JACKSBORO QUTSTANDING LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2008 2010 2009
Bonds payable § 7337020 5 7993039 § 2120000 § 2,180,000 5 9457020 § 10,173,039
Capital leases payable 58,964 76,293 62,763 18,651 121,727 95,944
Compensated absences 64,443 77,337 25,868 71,078 8312 148,415
Total $ 7460436 & B146669 5 2,208,632 5 2270729 5 9,669,068 § 10,417,398

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in note 4.B.1-5. of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Program of Services (Budget) and Rates

« 2010 appraised value used for the FY 11 budget preparation is $124,745,190, or 8.43% less than
the 2009 appraised values.

» The FY 11 adopted general operating fund budget decreased expenditures compared to the final
FY 10 actual amount, from $2,866,831 actual in FY 10 to a budgeted $2,373,518 in FY 11. This is
a, decrease of less than 2.0%.

» The $350,000 budgeted transfer-in to the general fund from the utility fund remains the same for
FY 11.

» The increase in costs of health insurance rates were taken into consideration for FY 11.

These indicators were faken into account when adoptmg the FY 11 general fund budget. Beginning
estimated fund balance available for appropriation in the FY 11 general fund budget was $226,225. The
maintenance and operation (M&Q) property tax levy was increased by 6.1% to fund the increased

operating costs of the general fund and to reduce dependence on the sales taxes as primary source of
operating revenue.

In total, the City's adopted FY 11 general fund budget is projected to decrease the ending fund balance
by $51,918.

Component Unit

The financial statements for the Jacksboro Economic Development Corporation (JEDC) , a component
unit of the City of Jacksboro, are included in this report,
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Component Unit Financial Highlights

» The assets of the JEDC exceeded its liabilities by $1,154,071 September 30, 2010.

* Net assets decreased by $535,397 in comparison with the prior year due to the donation of the
Gulf Texas and Western Railroad Depot to the general fund.

Table V
Jacksboro Economic Development Corparation Net Assets

Governmental Activities

2010 2009

Current and other assets S 930,748 3 1,530,295
Capilial assets, net of aceumulated depreciation 539,678 539,678

Total assets 1,470,426 2,069,873
Long-term liabilities outstanding 300,000 375,000
Cther liabilities 16,355 5,505

Tatal liabilities 316,355 380,505
Net assets

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 239,678 164,878

Unrestricted 914,383 1,524,790

Total net assets 5 1,154,071 § 1,680,468

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those with an
interest in the City of Jacksboro’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this

report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the City Secretary, 112 West
Belknap, Jacksboro, Texas, 76458.
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Recelvables {net of allowance for uncollectables)
Due from primary govemment
Internal balances
Deferred charges
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Capital assets:
Buildings and improvements
Streets
Lost Creek Dam and Reservoir
Water and sewer system
Machinery and equipment
Furmniture and fixtures
Accumulated depreciation
Tolal assets

LIABILITIES
Current [iabilities:
Accounts payable
Wages payable
Due to component unit
Accrued interest payable
Customer deposits
Non-current liabilities
Due within one year
Due in mare than one year
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invesied in capital assets {net of related debt)
Restricted for capital projects
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for tourism
Restricted for technology
Restricted for security and safety
Restricted for other purposes
Unresiricted
Total net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

City of Jacksboro, Texas
Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2010

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total Component Unit
8 289,728 B 141,208 3 430,937 $ 859,823
428,268 694,965 1,123,233 35,834

- - - 35,091

200 (200} - -

30,415 51,524 817,839 -
459,405 1,029,318 1,488,723 -
205,014 - 205,014 539,678

- 294,907 294 907 -

2,495 479 - 2,495,479 -
1,005,762 - 1,005,762 -
8,355,568 - 8,355,568 -

- 10,647,781 10,647,781 -

1,109,309 555,076 1,664,385 -
3,767 45,199 48,866 -
{4,508,852) {4,698,057) {9,208,809) -
9,874,063 8,761,722 18,635,785 1,470,426
125,140 451,491 576,631 15,105
43,589 20,311 63,900 -
35,091 - 35,091 -
60,827 16,010 76,837 1,250

- 45,405 45,405 -

735,238 135,409 870,647 75,000
6,725,198 2,073,223 8,798,421 225,000
7,725,083 2,741,849 10,466,932 316,355
1,471,609 5,450,477 6,922,086 239,678
2,397 - 2,397 -
186,270 - 186,270 -
71,048 - 71,048 -

24 2B6 - 24,286 -

5,104 - 5,104 -

402 - 402 -

387,864 569,396 857,260 914,393

3 2,148,980 $ 6,019,873 5 8,168,853 ki 1,154,071
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance for uncallectables)
Praperty taxes
Sales taxes
Other
Due from other funds
Due {rom other governments
Rastricted cash
Tolal assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANGE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and ather current liabilities
Wages payable
Due to other funds
Due to component unit
Dafarrad revenue
Tolad liabilities

Fund balances;
Unreserved, repered in
General fund
Reseirved, reported in
Geaneral fund
Debt service fund
Special revenue funds
Capital projects fund
Landfill capital projects fund
Total fund halances
Total liabilities and fund balances

City of Jacksboro, Texas

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
September 30, 2010

Other Total
General Debt Capital Projects Governmental Governmental
General Fund Service Fund Fund Funds Funds
§ 289,728 ] - 3 - 3 - S 288,728
27,552 50,720 - - 78,272
107,438 - - - 107,438
233,723 - . 8,835 242 558
5,485 - - - 5,485
402 189,965 172,740 86,208 459,405
3 664,338 5 240,685 5 172,740 5 105,133 3 1,182,888
5 122,842 5 - ) - 3 2,288 3 125,140
43,589 - - - 43,589
- 3,605 1,600 - 5,285
35,09% - - - 35,081
235,591 50,720 - - 287,311
438,113 54,415 1,600 2,298 496,425
225,823 - - - 225,823
402 - - - 402
- 186,270 - - 186,270
- - - 100,438 100,438
- - 171,140 - 171,140
: - - - 2,387 2,387
225,225 186,270 171.140 102,835 686,470
3 684,338 5 240,885 5 172,740 3 105,133 S 1,182,885
22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.



City of Jackshoro, Texas
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2010

Amounts reparted for governmeantal activiies in the statement of net assets arz different becausa:

Fund balances - {atal governmentat funds

5 686,470
Capital assets used in gavernmental activitias are not financial resources and, therefore, are not raponied in the funds. 9,666,047
tong-term liabilities, including bonds payable, leases payablz, and compensated absences, are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (7,430,021}
Accrued Intarest is reporied in the statement of net assets but does not require the use of eurrent financial resources, therefore,
it is nat reparted in the governmental funds. (60,827)
Accaunts receivable ara not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are deferrad in the funds, 287,311

Net assets of governmental activities 5 2,148,880

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 23



REVENUES
Taxes:

Praperty

Sales

Franchise
Charges for services
Licenses, permits and fees
Recreafion fees
Court fines
Rentals
Donations
ntergavernmental
Inerest income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current;

Leqgislative

Generzl government

Public safety

Sireets

Culture and recreation
Capital outlay:

General government
Debt service

Principal retirement

Interest

Paying agent fees

Total expenditures

Excass (deficlency) of revenues over (under}

expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in (out)

Total other financing socurces and uses
Met change in fund balances

Fund halancas - beginning
Fund balances - ending

The accormpanying notes are in imtegrat part of this statermant.

City of Jacksboro, Texas

Staternent of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balance

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

Other Total
General Debt Capltal Projacts Governmentai Governmental
General Fund Service Fund Fund Funds Funds

§ 610,861 ] 657,788 S - 3 - $ 1,268,649
717,274 - - - 717,274
326,691 - - 26,782 353,473
1,707 - - - 1,707
(3,608 - - - 63,608
20,261 - - - 20,261
108,676 - - 2,981 111,657
2,015 - - - 2,015
513,085 - - - 513,085
7.962 - - 19,350 27,312
1,485 2,398 459 357 4,676
42,666 - 1,000 - 43,666
2.416,281 660,186 1,459 49,470 3,127,356
31,067 - - - 31,067
801,231 - 44,467 38,510 884,208
1,016,711 - 3,387 32,461 1,052,559
259,452 - 3,634 - 363,086
230,575 - - - 230,575
507,182 B 30,000 - 537,182
17,332 656,010 - - 573,342
3,281 433,460 - - 438,741

- 580 - - 580
2,868,831 1,080,050 51,488 70,971 4,108,340
{450,550) {429,864 (80,029) {21,501) {881.844)
366,395 488,732 - {16,3895) 818,732
366,395 468,732 - {16,395) 818,732
{84,155) 34,868 (B0,028) (37,898) {163,212)
316,380 147,402 251,159 140,731 849,683
] 226,225 S 186,270 5 171,140 ] 102,835 5 586,470
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City of Jacksharo, Texas
Recanciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Ghanges in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities
September 30, 2010

Arnounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are difierant because:

Met change in fund balances - total governmental funds 3 {163,212)

Governmental funds repari capital outlay as expenditures, However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reporied as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays
exceeded dgpreciation in the current period. 121,834

The issvance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the
repayment of the principal of tang-term debt cansumes the current financial resources of gavernmental funds, Neither
transaction, howevar, has any effect on net assets. Alse, governmental funds report the efiect of issuznce costs, pramiums,
discounts, and simifar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of

activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term deht and related items. 660,000

Some expenses reporied in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefora,

are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 23,581

Some revenues reported in the statement of activities do not provide current financial resources and, therefore, are not

reported as revenuss in govemnmental funds, 20,392
Change in net assets of governmental activities 5 662,585

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 25



City of Jacksboro, Texas
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances - Budgetary and Actual

REVENUES
Taxes:

Property

Sales

Franchise
Charges for services
Licenses, permits and fees
Recreation fees
Court fines
Rentals
Donations
Intergovernmenta)
interest income
Miscallaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Legislative

General government

Public safely

Streels

Culture and recreation
Capital outlay:

General government
Debt service:

Capital lease Principal

Capitat lease interest

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over (under)

expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total ather financing sources and uses
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statemeant.

For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

Variance with

Final Budget -
Positive
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts {Negative)
Original Final

580,200 5 580,200 3 610,861 3 20,661
722,000 722,000 717,274 (4,726)
347,000 347,000 326,691 {20,309)
1,500 1,500 1,707 207
50,000 50,000 63,608 13,608
15,000 15,000 20,261 5,261
165,000 165,000 108,676 (56,324)
3,600 3,600 2,015 (1,585)

- 30,000 513,005 483,095

- 5,962 7,562 2,000
1,500 1,500 1,465 (35)
35,000 40,335 42,666 2,331
1,930,800 1,972,097 2,416,281 444,184
33,700 31,200 31,067 133
752,839 731,089 801,231 {70,142)
1,008,704 1,013,589 1,016,711 {3.122)
235,085 235,065 250 452 {24,387)
213,982 253,982 230,575 23,407
- - 507,182 (507.182)
17,330 17,330 17,332 (2)
3,283 3,283 3,281 2
2,264,903 2,285,538 2,866,831 (581,283)
{334,103) {313,441) (450,550) (137.109)
350,000 350,000 374,495 24,495
{8,100} {8,100} (8,100) -
341,900 341,900 366,385 24,495
7,797 28,450 (B4,155) (112,614)
310,380 310,380 310,380 -
318,177 5 338,839 § 226,225 3 (112.614)
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City of Jacksboro, Texas
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2010

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectables)
Total current assets
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Noncurrent assets:
Deferred charges
Capital assets:
Water and sewer system
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Construction in progress
L.ess: accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Wages payable
Due to cther funds
Utility customer deposits
Compensated absences
Leases payable current
Bonds payable current
Accrued interest payable
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable
Leases payable
Compensated absences
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets (net of related debt)
Unrestricted
Total net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 27

Water and Sewer
Fund

3 141,209
694,965

836,174

1,028,318

51,524

10,647,781
555,076
45,199
294,907
(4,698,057)

5,844,806

6,896,430

8,761,922

451,491
20,311
200
45,405
20,000
25,408
90,000
16,010

668,826

2,030,000
37,354
5,869

2,073,223

2,742,049

5,450,477
569,386

3 6,019,873




City of Jacksboro, Texas

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for sales and services:
Water sales
Sewer charges
Solid waste
Penalties
Tap fees

Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES;

Costs of sales and services:
Salaries and benefits
Supplies and maintenance
Contractual services
Sanitation contractual services
Depreciation
Bad debt expense

Total operating expenses
Operating income

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment earnings
Interest expense
Capital improvement fees
Total nonoperating revenue {(expenses)
Income before contributions and transfers
Transfers out
Capital contribution
Net change in net assets
Total net assets - beginning
Total net assets - ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 28

Water and Sewer
Fund

3 1,269,904
840,704

513,702

48,965

8,450

1,795

2,681,520

662,950
428,210
74,619
958,847
306,615
15,246

2,046,487

635,033

2,859
(133,623)
55,815

(74,849)

560,084
(818,732)
162,620

(96,028)
6,115,901

$ 6,019,873




City of Jacksboro, Texas
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees and professional contractors for services
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FRON NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer to other funds

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets
Amortization and debt issue costs
Principal and interest paid on capital debt
Capital contribution
Capital improvement fees
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning
Cash and cash equivalents - ending

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization
{Increase) decrease in bad debt
{Increase} decrease in accounis receivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and other liabilities
Increase {decrease) in wages payable
Net cash provided by operating activities

Non cash supplemental item:
Purchase of capital assets with debt

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the statement of net assets:

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Total cash and cash equivalents

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 28

Water and Sewer
Fund

$ 2,415,886
(701,246)
(709,499)

1,005,141

{818,732)

{818,732)

(404,279)
(3,176)
(201,329)
162,620
55,815

(390,348)

2,859

2,859

(201,081)
1,371,608

$ 1,170,527

$ 635,033
309,791
(16,059)
(249,575)
327,214
(1,263)

5 1,005,141
$ 53,994
$ 141,209
1,029,318

$ 1 170,527




CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City of Jacksboro, Texas {City} have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The mast significant of the government’s accounting
paolicies are described below.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The City is incorporated as a general law municipal corporation under the faws of the State of Texas. The
City operates under a Mayor / Aldermanic form of government and provides the following services:
public safety (police and fire), streets, legislative, culture and recreation, and general administrative
services. Other services include water, sewer, and solid waste operations. The City, for financial
purposes, includes all of the funds relevant to the operations of the City of Jacksboro, Texas.

The accompanying financial statements present the City and its component units, entities for which the
City is considered to be financially accountable. Component units of the City include those of separately
administered organizations that are controlled by or dependent on the City. Control or dependence is
determined on the basis of budget adoption, taxing authority, funding, and appointment of the respective
governing board. The discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the
government-wide financial statements (see note below for description) to emphasize that it is legally
separate from the City.

Discretely Presented Companent Unit

The Jacksboro Economic Development Corporation {(JEDC) serves all the citizens of the City and is
governed by a board of directors that are appointed by and serve at the discretion of the City Council.
The JEDC is reported as a governmental entity and its accounts are maintained on the modified accrual
basis of accounting.

Separate financial statements are not issued for the JEDC.
B. Government-wide financial statements and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements {i.e. the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on activities of the primary government and its component unit. Activity for
the primary government and its component unit are reported in a discrete presentation in the
government-wide financial statements. The effect of interfund activity between governmental activities
and business-type activities has not been eliminated in the process of consolidation.

Governmental activities are supported in part by property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, and grant

revenues from the federal government and the State of Texas. Governmental activities are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a large extent on fees and charges for support.
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

Significant revenues generated from business-type activities include: charges to customers for water and
wastewater services and sanitation fees.

The statement of activities reports the change in the City's net assets from October 1, 2008 to September
30, 2010. This statement demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function of
government are offset by program revenues. Specifically, the City has identifled the following functions of
government: legislative services, general government services, public safety services, streets services,
cuiture and recreation services, wastewater utility and sanitation services. Direct expenses are those that
are clearly identifiable with a specific function of city government. Program revenues include: 1) charges
to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not

included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues in the statement of
activities,

In addition to the government-wide financial statements, the City also reports separate financial
statements for major governmental funds and proprietary funds; these funds are classified as fund
financial statements. The fund financial statements are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity with self-balancing accounts that compromise its assets,
liabilities, fund balances, revenues and expenditures, or expenses. Governmental resources are allocated
to and accounted for in the individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and
the means by which spending activities are controlled.

Funds are organized into two distinct categories: governmental and proprietary. Information in the fund
financial statements is reported on a major fund basis. The calculation of major funds is conducted by the
City each year accerding to governmental accounting standards.

Major individual governmental funds and major individual proprietary funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.

The major funds at September 30, 2010, are as follows: general fund, debt service fund, capital projects
fund, and the water, sewer, and solid waste fund. The non-major governmental funds are: hotel/mote]

tax, court technology, court security, school safety, crossing guard, grant, and landfill capital projects
fund.

Major governmental funds include the following:

General Fund: The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. This fund is used to account
for all financial resources of the general government, except for those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

Debt Service Fund: This governmental debt service fund is used to account for the annual debt service
requirements of the City.
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

Capital Projects Fund: This governmental capital projects fund is used to account for the use of debt
proceeds to acquire or construct capital assets.

The major enterprise fund is the water, sewer, and solid waste fund and includes the following:

Water and Wastewater Utility Services: This is used to account for the water and wastewater services
provided by the City.

Solid Waste Servics: This is used to account for the sanitation services provided by the City.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

1)

2)

Governmental Funds

The City uses the modified accrual basis of accounting and the flow of current financial resources
measurement focus for all governmental funds. Under the modified accrual hasis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when both “measurable and available.” Measurable means knowing, or
being capable of calculating or estimating the amount to be received. Available means
collectable within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities
(generally 60 days}. Also, under the modified accrual basis of accounting, expenditures (including
capital outlay) are recorded in the period when the related fund liability is incurred.

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual in the governmental funds include:

Sales taxes are collected by the State and remitted to the City in 60 days arrears. The City
allocates its sales tax revenues to the General Fund and JEDC pursuant to City ordinances.

Franchise fees are remitted regularly by franchise owners for utilities operating in the City.

Property taxes are billed and collected by the Jack County Tax Assessor based on assessed
taxable values each January 1 as determined by the Central Appraisal District using exemptions
approved by the City. Taxes are levied the next October and are past due after February 1 of the
following year. Property taxes at the fund level are recorded on October 1 as receivables,
including a reserve estimate for uncollectable accounts, and deferred revenue when taxes are
assessed. Property tax revenues are recorded as taxes are collected. Delinguent tax payments
are recognized as revenue when both measurable and available. Amounts estimated to be
collectable in time to be a resource payment of obligations incurred during the fiscal year and
therefore susceptible to accrual in accordance with GAAP have been recognized as revenue.

Government-Wide Financial Statements and Proprietary Funds

The acerual basis of accounting and flow of economic rescurces measurement focus are used in
the government-wide financial statements and all proprietary fund types. All assets and
liabilities (whether current or noncurrent} are included in the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total
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CITY OF JACKSBORQ, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned, and
expenses {including depreciation) are recorded when the liability is incurred. For the proprietary
funds and for the government-wide financial statements, and in accordance with GASB
Accounting Standards Codification Section P80, the City applies all FASB guidance issued on or
before November 30, 1989, unless it conflicts with or contradicts GASB guidance, and has chosen
not to follow FASB guidance issued subsequent to that date.

The accounting objectives for the proprietary fund are the determination of net income, financial
position and cash flows. Proprietary fund equity is segregated into {1) invested in capital assets,
net of related debt, (2) restricted net assets, and (3) unrestricted net assets.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expense from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the proprietary funds are charges to custamers for water sales,
wastewater utilities and sanitation services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the
cost of sales and services, administrative services, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses,.

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the City Council is that the costs
{expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods and services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or where the City
Council has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred and/or
net income (loss), is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability or other purposes. The water, sewer, and solid waste enterprise fund of the City is

classified as a business-type activity in the government-wide statements of net assets and
activities.

D. Assets, Liabilities, Fund Balance/Net Assets and Other

1)

2)

Poaled Cash, investments and Temporary Deposits

The City's cash, investments and temporary deposits are pooled for investment. For purposes of
the statement of cash flows, the City considers cash on hand, demand deposits, and investments
with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital assets {i.e. land, building, equipment, improvements, infrastructure, and construction in
progress) of all the funds are stated at historical cost or estimated historical cost if histarical cost
is not known. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair value on the date donated. An
item is classified as an asset if the initial, individual cost is $5,000 or greater. Capital assets of the
City are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

3}

4)

5)

government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund financial statements. Assets
subject to depreciation are depreciated using the stralght-line method. The useful lives of all
depreciable assets are as follows:

Building 20-50 years
Machinery and Equipment 5-15 years
Infrastructure 20-50 years

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation benefits in varying amounts depending on tenure with the City.
These benefits accumulate pro rata by pay period. The valuation of accrued compensated
absences includes salary related payments such as the City’s share of Social Security, Medicare
taxes and contributions to the retirement plan in accordance with GASB Accounting Standards
Codification Section C60.

Risk Management

The City purchases commergial insurance with Texas Municipal League to reduce exposure to
risks of loss related to natural disasters, injuries to employees, errors and omissions, and damage
or theft of assets. The City accounts for risk management issues in accordance with GASB
Accounting Standards Codification Sections C50 and Po20.

Interfund Transfers

Interfund transactions are reflected as either loans, services provided, reimbursements, or
transfers. Loans reported as receivables and payables as appropriate, are subject to elimination
upon consolidation and are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e. the current
portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e. the noncurrent porticn of
interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding hetween the governmental activities and the
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal
balances.” Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements are offset by a
fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not
availabie for appropriation and are not available financial resources.

Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and
expenditures/expenses.  Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the
appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related costs as reimbursement. All other interfund
transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are
netted as part of the reconciliation ta the government-wide presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of
management’s estimates.
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

7} Use of Restricted/Unrestricted Net Assets

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets
are available, the City’s policy is to apply restricted net assets first,

2. Reconciliation of government-wide financial and fund financial statements

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the gavernment-
wide statement of net assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance — total governmental
funds and net assets — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net
assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities, including bonds payable,
leases payable, and compensated absences, are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds.” The details of this $7,430,021 difference are as follows:

Bands Payable 5 7,337,029
Less: deferred charge for issuance costs (to be amortized

over life of debt) (30,415)
Capital leases payable 58,963
Compensated absences 64,444
Net adjustrnent to reduce fund balance - total governmental

funds to arrive st net assets- gaveramental octivities 5 7,430,021

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and changes in net assets
of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of
that reconciliation explains that “governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense.” The details of this $121,834 difference are as follows:

Capital outlay 5 537,182
Depreciation expense (415,348)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund bolonce - total
governmental funds to arrive at chonges in net assets of
governmentol activities, S 121,834

Another efement of that reconciliation states that “the issuance of long-term debt {e.g. bonds, [eases)
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction,
however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amaunts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activities.” The details of this $660,000 difference are as follows:
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 20, 2010
Debt principal repayments:
General obligation debt 5 656,010
Capital leases 17,332
Amortization of issuance costs (13,342)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balance -
total governmental funds to arrive at chonge in net assets
of governmental activities S 660,000

Another element of that reconciliation states that “some expenses reported in the statement of activities
do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds”. The details of this $23,581 difference are as follows:

Accrued interest S 10,688
Compensated absences 12,893
Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund bolonce - total

governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of

governmental activities. 4 23,581

Another element of that reconciliation states that “some revenues reported in the statement of activitjes
do not provide current financial resources and therefore are not reported as revenues in governmental
funds”. The details of this $20,392 difference are as follows:

Ad valorem taxes 5 13,043
Municlpal court fines 7.349
Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund bolonce - totol

governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of

governmentol octivities. 5 20,392

3. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability
A. Budget and Budgetary Accounting

The City Council adopts an annual budget for the general fund, special revenue funds, debt service fund
and water, sewer, and solid waste fund. The Capital Projects Funds are budgeted on a project basis. The
annual budgets for the General Fund, Debt Service and Special Revenue Funds are adopted on a modified
accrual basis. The budget for the Utility Fund is adopted under a basis consistent with GAAP, except that
amortization and depreciation are not considered {working capital basis).

The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the Basic Financial
Statements:

Prior to the beginning of the fiscal year, the City prepares a budget for the next succeeding fiscal year.
The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. A meeting of the
City Council is then called for the purpose of adopting the proposed budget. At least ten days public
notice of the meeting must have been given.

Prior to the start of the fiscal year, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution by the
City Council.
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

Once a budget is approved, it can only be amended by approval of a majority of the members of the City
Council. As required by law, such amendments are made before the fact, are reflected in the official
minutes of the City Council and are not made after fiscal year end. All budget apprapriations lapse at year

end.

B. Budget Amendments

For the year ended September 30, 2010, the general fund budget was amended during the fiscal year to
reflect additional expenditures of 520,635, including $10,000 for repairs at the animal shelter, which were
funded partially by donations. The budgeted revenues were amended during 2010 to reflect additional
donations and Intergovernmental revenue of $41,300. The net effect of the budget amendments to the
General Fund balance is an additional budgeted increase of $20,665.

4, Detailed Notes on All Funds

A. Assets

1)

2)

Deposits

At September 30, 2010, the carrying amount of the City's deposits (cash, certificates of deposit,
and interest bearing savings accounts included in temporary investments) was $745,435, and the
combined bank account balances at the First National Bank of Jacksboro amounted to $702,367.
The difference of 343,068 is due to a combination of deposits in transit and outstanding checks.
The City's cash deposits at September 30, 2010 and during the fiscal year ended September 30,
2010, were entirely covered by FDIC insurance or by collateral pledged by the City's bank and
held by the City's agent bank in the City’s name.

Investments

State statutes authorize the City's investments. These investments include obligations of the
United States Government agencies and instrumentalities and obligations of the State of Texas
and other political subdivisions rated “A” or above by Standard and Poor's Corporation or

Moedy's. The City did not engage in repurchase or reverse repurchase agreement transactions
during the year.

The Texas Short Term Asset Reserve Program {TexSTAR) has been organized in conformity with
the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, and the Public Funds
fnvestment Act Chapter 2256 of the Texas Gavernment Code. These two acts provide for the
creation of public funds investments pools (including TexSTAR) and authorize eligible
governmental entities to invest their public funds through the investment pools. TexSTAR is
administered by JP Morgan Chase and First Southwest Asset Management, Inc. and is rated AAA
by Standard and Poar’s.

At September 30, 2010, the book value and the cambined account balances of the City’s deposits
in TexSTAR local government investment pool was $1,174,225. The average monthly rate of the
pool was 0.2113%, the weighted average maturity of the pool was 48 days and the net asset
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value of the pool was 1.000099. These investments are considered cash equivalents in the
financial statements. The fair value of these investments is the same as the value of the pooled

shares.

GASB Accounting Standards Codification Sections €20 and 150 require a determination as to
whether the City was exposed to the following specific investment risks at year end, and if so, the
reporting of certain related disclosures:

a.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill
its obligations. The ratings of securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are
designed to give an indication of credit risk. The City’s Investment Policy is to minimize
credit risk by:

1. Limiting investments to suitable and authorized investments including
obligations of the United States, bank certificates of deposits, fully
collateralized direct repurchase agreements, money market mutual funds, and
local government investment pools meeting requirements under the Public
Funds Investment Act, rated no lower than AAA that are authorized by City
Council action.

2. Pre-qualifying the financial institutions and broker/dealers with which the City
will do business.

3. Investment portfolio diversification so that losses on individual securities are
minimized.

Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository
insurance and the deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by
the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution’s trust department or agent, but not in the City’s name.

Investment securities are exposed to custodial risk if the securities are uninsured, are
not registered in the name of the government, and are held by either the counterparty
or the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the City's name.

At year end, the City was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk

This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a

single issuer. This is controlled through the City's investment policies on diversification
as follows:
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tnvestments are limited to avold over concentration in securities from a specific
issuer or business sector (excluding U.S. treasury securities).

Limiting investments in securities that have higher credit risks.

Investing in securities with varying maturities.

Cantinuously investing in a partion of the portfolio in readily available funds
such as local government investment pools, money market funds or overnight
repurchase agreements to ensure that appropriate liquidity is maintained in
order to meet ongoing obligations.

d. interest Rate Risk

This is the risk that changes in Interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The City's investment policies regarding interest rate risk are:

Structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash
requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell
securities on the open market prior to maturity.

Investing operating funds primarily in shorter-term securities, money market
funds, or similar investment pools.

e. Foreign Currency Risk

This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
At year end, the City was not exposed to foreign currency risk.

3} Receivables

Receivables as of the year ended September 30, 2010 for the City's individual major funds,
including the allowances for uncollectable accounts, are as follows:

Receivables:
Property tax
Sales tax
HoteliMotal Tax
Franchise feas
Municipal Court fines
Customer accounts
Miscallanaous
Gross Recelvables

Less; Allowanre for uncollectibles

Property 1ax
Municipal Court fines
Customer accounts

Net total recelvables

Other
Gavernmental Debt Service
General Fund Funds Fund Utitity Fund Total
] 33,204 K] - s 86,780 5 - ] 80,584
107,438 - - 107,438
- 5,085 - - 5,085
20,955 - - 20,855
415,706 - - 415,708
- - 709,456 700,458
4916 3,750 - - 5866
582 219 8835 56.780 709.A56 1,357,250
(5,652) - (6,050) . (11,712
(207,854) - - . {207 B854}
- - - {14.481) {14,491}
(213,508) - (5.060) {14,457} {234 057)
5 368,713 5 8,835 5 &50.720 $ B94.865 S 1,123,233
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4)

Capital Assets

Capital assets, additions, disposals, and depreciation for governmental activities and business-

type activities for the year ended September 30, 2010 were as follows:

Gavernmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Censtruclion in progress
Tatals, cagital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated;
Furnilure and fixtures
Machinery & eguipment
Streats
Lost Creek Dam & Resarvoir
Bulldings and improvements
Totals, capital assets being depreciated
Less; accumulalad depreclation for:
Furniture and fixtures
Machinery & eguipmant
Streeis
L.ost Creek Dam & Reservoir
Buildings and improvements
Total aecumulated depreciation
Totai capital assets being depreciated, net
City capltal assets, net

Business-type activities:
Capitz| assets, net being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Totals, capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:;
Furniture & fixtures
Machinery & equipment
Water and sewer system
Totals, capital assets being depreciated
Less: acoumulzated depreciation for:
Furniture & fixtures
Machinery & sguipment
Water and sewer system
Total aceurnulated depreciation
Total capitzl assets being depreciated, net
City capital assets, net

Beginning
Balance Increases Decreases Ending Balance
5 205014 3 - - 3 205,014
40,877 - (40,877) -
245,881 - (40.877) 205,014
3,767 - - 3,767
1,109,309 - - 1,108,309
1,005,762 - - 1,005,762
8,355,568 - - 8,355,568
1.917.419 537,163 40.877 2,485,479
12,391,825 537,183 40,877 12,968,885
(3.767) - - (3,767)
(596,213) (82,383} . (675,196)
(162,445) (50,278) - (212,723)
(2,508,501} (167,111) - {2,675,612)
{822.577) {114.977) - (937.554)
(4.093,503) {415,348) - {4,508,852)
B,298,322 121,634 40,877 8,461,034
5 B.544.213 & 121,834 - 8 8,666,047
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
g - S - E] 5 -
53,320 241,587 294,907
53,320 241,587 284,907
45,199 - 45,199
453,894 101,182 555,076
10,532,278 115,503 10,647,781
11,031,371 216,685 11,248,056
{42,929) (2,270) (45,199)
{211,408) [40,348) (251,754)
{4.137.1068) {263,998) {4.401.104)
{4.391,443) (305,614) {4,698,057}
6,639,928 (89,929) 6,540,099
5 6,693,248 5 151,658 ] S 6,844,906

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Amount
General Government 8 32,580
Fublic Safety 106,572
Streets 59,985
Culture and Racreation 216,212
Total Depreciation & 415,349
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B. Liabilities

1} Changes in general long terrn liabilities:

Governmental Activities:

Bonds Payable
Capital l[eases payable
Compensatad absences

Govemmental activity long-term

liabilities

Businesstype actlvities:
Bonds Payable

Capital leases payable
Compensated absences

Businesstype activity long-term

labilities

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year
$ 7,693,038 1] - % (656,010) & 7,337,029 K] 697,061
78,283 - (17.328) 58,964 18,177
77,337 65,046 (78,840) §4,443 20,000
5 8,146,669 5 €5,946 5 (72178} 5 7,460,436 5 735,238
$ 2,180,000 5 - 3 (60,0000 § 2,120,000 ] 80,000
18,651 53,994 {10,882) 62,763 25,409
714,078 17,878 {G2,885) 25,869 20,000
$ 2,270,729 5 71,670 $  (133,767) & 2,208,632 3 134,408

For governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the general fund,

2) Bonds payable

Bonded indebtedness of the City is reflected in the Statement of Net Assets, and current
reguirements for principal and interest expenditures are accounted for in the general debt
service fund and proprietary funds. A summary of the changes in governmental activities and
business-type activities long-term debt for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010, is as

follows:
Amounts
Interast Original Boginning Ending

Doscription Sories Rate Issue Balance issuod Retirad Balanco
Governmantal Activitios:

Comb Tax & Rev - Cert of Ohligatian ** 19E8 47-745% [Z] 5 5,789,013 § 2423039 - 5 {541.010) 1,882,029

General Obligation Refunding Bonds * 1989 38-52% (3] 5,760,000 730,000 - - 780,600

Coma Tax & Rev - Gert of Obilgation 2004 4.65% [3] 273,000 235,000 - (10,000} 225,000

Comb Tax & Rev - Cert of Chilgation 2006 4.73% (3] 455,000 380,000 - (14,000) 365,000

Comb Tax & Rev - Cert of Obligation 2008 4.00% 3] 1.600,000 4,630,000 - (ab,000) 1,440,000

Ganaral Obligation Retunding Bonds 2008 4.98% [1] 2,635,000 2,635,000 - 2,635,000
Total Gavernmonta| Activities 5 16,522,013 & 7,883,038 - S (BS5,010) 5 7,337,028
Businoss-typo activitios:

Water and wastew ater fund

Camb Tax & Rev - Cari of Gbligalion 2004 4.65% [3] 5 282 000 5 220,000 - § (100000 5 210,000

Comb Tax & Rev - Cert of Obligation 2006 4.71% [3] 545,000 500,000 - (20,000) 480,000

Cand Tax & Rev - Cert of Obligation 2008 4.00% [3] 200,000 180,000 (10,000) 180,000

Camb Tax & Rev - Cart of Obligation ™ 2008A 4.98% - 8.65% [3] 350,400 350,000 - - 350,000

Comb Tax & Rev - Cart af Obligation ** 2009 5.35% - £.73% (3) 520,000 520,000 {20.000) 50,000
Total Buslnosstyps Activitios 5 2,277.000 $ 2,180,000 - $  (60,000) 5 2,120,000

** The interest rates increase over the term of the debt.
[1] Issued for current refunding of $830,000 of the City's outstanding General Ohligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 1999, 125,000 of the Series 1994A Combination Tax &
Revenue Certificates of Obligation Bonds, and 51,610,000 of the Series 1997
Combination Tax & Revenue Certificates of Obligation Bonds.
[2] Issued to purchase the Lost Creek Reservair
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(3] Issued for capital purchases and improvements, including streets and drainage,
water and sewer system, public safety, and city parks

Annual debt service requirements are as follows:

Total
Years ending September 30: Principal Interast Requirements

Governmental activities:

2011 3 697,061 8 388,667 $ 1,085,628
2012 732 545 339,787 1,072,332
2013 769,300 288,043 1,057,343
2014 687,690 242,694 930,284
2015 717,690 209,059 926,749
2016-2020 2,765,752 566,061 3,331,813
2021-2025 659,380 136,832 786,312
2026-2029 307,611 18,777 326,388

3 7,337,029 $ 2,189,820 3 9,526,849

Business-type activities:

2011 3 90,000 $ 103,400 $ 193,400
2012 93,681 89,012 192,693
2013 94,443 84,370 188,813
2014 107,310 89,440 186,750
2015 87310 04,788 192,088
2016-2020 574,249 385,321 969,570
2021-2025 690,618 221,061 911,679
2026-2029 372,389 50,785 423,174

3 2,120,000 3 1,148,177 & 3,268,177

3) Defeasance of Prior Debt
In 2008, the City defeased certain outstanding bonds by placing the proceeds from the issuance
of new refunding bands in irrevocable trusts which will provide amounts sufficient for future

redemption or payments of principal and interest of the issues refunded.

Accordingly, the trust accounts and the liability for the refunded {defeased} bonds are not
reflected in the financial statements of the City.

At September 30, 2010, the following refunded debt outstanding is as follows:

Series 1999 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 5 830,000
Series 1997 Combination Tax & Revenue Certificates of Obligation 1,370,000
$2,200,000

4) Capital leases

The Public Property Finance Act gives the City authority to enter into capital leases for the
acquisition of personal property. Principal repayments due after September 30, 2010 are
accounted for in the Statement of Net Assets. The assets acquired through capital leases are as
follows:
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5)

Net Assat
Book Beginning Ending Due Within
Value Balance Increases Decraases Balance QOne Year
Governmental Activitios:

Fire truck 5 18787 5 76,283 L - § (17,328) & 58,984 5 18,177

2004 one ton fruck 13115 - - - - -

2004 kubota 17.671 - - - -

2005 Craw n Victoria 14,270 - - - - -
Total Governmental Activities: 5 160,823 5 76,283 5 - $ (17328 5 58,984 5 18,177
Business-type activities:

Water and wastewater fund

Backhoa 5 21,227 3 - 1 - 5 - s - s -

2004 one tan truck 10,259 - - - - -

2007 pickup 17,233 - - - - -

Sew er jetting machina 24,294 19,651 - {8,100) 31,551 8,164

Bacihoa 53,594 - 53,994 {2,781) 51,213 17,245
Total Businesstype Activities: § 127,007 5 19,651 5 £53,954 $ (10,881) 3 £2,763 E] 25,408

Commitments under capitalized lease agreements for facilities and equipment provide for
minimum future rental payments as of September 30, 2010 as follows:

Total

Years ending September 30: Principal Interest Raguiremenis
Governmental activities:
20M § 18,177 g 2,433 3 20,610
2012 19,067 1,545 20,612
2013 21,720 §12 23,332
Total governmental activities § 58,964 § 4,590 § 53,554
Business-type activities:
2011 8 25,409 8 2,308 3 27,717
2012 21,571 1,318 22,890
2013 : 15,783 359 16,152
Total business-type activities 5 62,763 8 3,986 $ 66,758

Retirement Plan
Pension Plan

Plan Description. The City's pension plan is administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement
Systern (TMRS). TMRS is a statewide agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that
administers 827 nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit plans covering all
eligible employees of member cities in Texas. The plan provisions that have been adopted by the
City are within the options available in the governing statutes of TMRS.

TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary infarmation (RSl} for TMRS; the report also provides
detailed explanations of the contributions, benefits and actuarial methods and assumptions used
by TMRS. This repart may be obtained by writing TMRS, P.O. Box 149153, Austin, Texas 78714-
8153 or by calling (800) 924-8677; in addition, the report is availahle on TIVRS' website at
www . TMRS.com.

Benefits. Upon retirement, benefits depend on the sum of the employee’s contributions, with
interest, and the city-financed monetary credits, with interest. City-financed monetary credits
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are composed of three sources: prior service credits, current service credits, and updated service
credits. At the inception of the plan, the City granted monetary credits for service rendered
befare the plan began of a theoretical amount equal to two times what would have been
contributed by the employee, with interest, prior to the establishment of the plan. Monetary
credits for service since the plan began are a 200% of the employee’s accumulated contributions.

[n addition, the City grants on an annually repeating basis a monetary credit referred to as
Updated Service Credit which is a theoretical amount which takes into account salary increases
or plan improvements. At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee's
accumulated contributions with interest and the City-financed monetary credits with interest
were used to purchase an annuity.

A summary of the plan provisions for the City are as follows:

2007 2008 2008

Employee deposit rate 7% 7% 7%
Mathing ratio (city to employee) 2tol 2tal 2tol
Years required for vesting 5 5 3
Service retirement eligibility

{age/vears of service) 60/s,0/20 GD/5, 0/20 &0/5, 020
Updated service credit 100% Repeating 100% Repeating 100% Repeating
Annuity increase to retirees 70% of CPI 70% of CPI 70% of CPI
Supplemental death benefit
for active employees Y ¥ Y
for active retirees Y Y ¥

Funding Policy. Eligible City employees are required to contribute 7% of their annual covered
salary. Under state law governing TMRS, the actuary annually determines the City contribution
rate per GAAP and state statues on a calendar-year basis. The City discloses the annual pension
costs based on the calculated rates per GAAP for the City's fiscal year. The contribution rates for
the calendar years 2010 and 2009 were 13.25% and 11.25% of annual covered payroll,
respectively. This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior service
contribution rate, which is calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year to year. The
normal cost contribution rate finances the portion of an active member's projected benefit
allocated annually. The prior service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded actuarial liability
over the applicable period. Both the employees and the City make contributions on a monthly
basis. Since the City must know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary purpases, there is
a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation that serves as the basis for the contribution
rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect {i.e. the January 1, 2010 contribution
rate is based on the December 31, 2008 valuation results). If a change in plan provisions is
elected by the City, this rate can change.

Annual Pension Cost. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010, the City's annual pension

cost of $174,386 was equal to the City's required and actual contributions. Three year trend
information is as follows:
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5)

Annual Percentage Net

Pension of APC Pensioin
Year Ended Cost (APC})  Contributed  Obligation
09/30/2008 3 163,551 100% § -
05/30/2009 S 183,084 100% S -
05/30/2010 & 174,386 100% S -

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2009, the most recent actuarial
valuation date, the plan was 66.1% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was
$4.179 million, and the actuarial value of assets was $2.762 million. The covered payroll (annual
payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $1.268 million, and the ratio of the UAAL to
the covered payroll was 111.7%. The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required
Supplementary Information (RSl) following the notes to the financial statements, presents
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Actuarial information

is as follows:

2007

2008

2009

Actuarial cost methad

Amortization method

Amortization period

Asset valuation method

Assurnptians;
Investment return
Projected salary increases

Inflation
Cost of living adjustments

City specific assumptions
Payroll growth assumption
Withdrawal rates far male/female

Cther Post-Employment Benefits

Projected Unit
Credit

Level Percent of
Payrall

30 years - closed
period

Amortized cost

7.0%
Varies by age and
service
3.0%

2.1%

3.0%
High/tow

OPEB — Supplemental Death Benefits Plan

Projected Unit
Credit

Level Percent of
Payrall

29 years - closed
period

Amortjzed cost

7.5%
Varies by age and
service
3.0%

2.1%

3.0%
High/Low

Projected Unit
Credit

Lavel Parcent of
Payrall

28 years - closad
pericd

10-year Smoothad
Market

7.5%
Varies by age and
service
3.0%

2.1%

3.0%
High/tow

Plan Description. TMRS also administers a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group
term life insurance plan known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). This is a
voluntary program in which participating municipalities may elect, by ordinance, to provide
group-term life insurance coverage (“supplemental death benefits”} for their active members
and/or retirees. Employers may terminate coverage under and discontinue participation in the

SDBF by adopting an ordinance befare November 1 of any year to be effective the following
lanuary 1.
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Benefits. Payments from this fund are similar to group-term life insurance benefits, and are paid
to the designated beneficiaries upon the receipt of an approved application for payment. The
death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the
employee’s annual salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual earnings for the 12-month
period preceding the month of death). The death benefit for retirees is considered a
postemployment benefit other than pension benefit {OPEB or other postemployment benefit}
and is a fixed amount of 57,500. The obligations of this plan are payable only from the SDBF, and
are not an obligation of, or a claim against, the Pension Trust Fund.

Contributions. Contributions are made monthly based on the covered payroll of employee
members of the participating municipality. The contractually required contribution rate is
determined annually for each municipality. The rate is based on the mortality and service
experience of all employees covered by the SDBF and the demographics specific to the workforce
of the municipality. There is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation that serves as the
basis for the employer contribution rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect.
The contributions to the SDBF are pooled for investment purposes with those of the Pension
Trust Fund. The TMRS Act requires the Pension Trust Fund to allocate investment income to the
SDBF on an annual basis. The funding policy of this plan is to assure that adequate resources are
available to meet all death benefit payments for the upcoming year; the intent is not to prefund
retiree term life insurance during employees’ entire careers. As such, contributions are utilized
to fund active member deaths on a pay-as-you-go basis; any excess contributions and investment
income aver payments then become net assets available for OPEB.

Funded Status and Funding Progress. Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future.
Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared
to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress presents, as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial
statements, multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. The
schedule includes results for as many valuations as have been performed based on the

parameters established under GASB Accounting Standards Codification Sections Pe5, Pe5, and
Po50.

Actuarial calculations are based on the benefit provided under the terms of the substantive plan
in effect at the time of each valuation, and reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent with that
perspective, actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.
Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows. Assets of the SDBF are valued
at “fund value” {or fund balance) as these assets are pooled with those of the Pension Trust Fund
under the provisions of the TMRS Act. GASB Accounting Standards Codification Sections Pes5,
Pe6, and Po50 require the investment return (discount rate) assumption to take into account the
estimated long-term investment yield on the investments that are expected to be used to
finance the payment of benefits. Benefits are expected to be provided partially from

48



CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

accumulated plan assets {including accumulated investment earnings) and partially from direct

employer contributions.

Funds are expected to earn 5% interest annually, emplayer contributions will be made from
working funds held in cash or shart-term investments. Based on the expected blend of the
source of these funds, the investment return assumption has been set at 4.25%.

2009
PLAN PROVISIONS
1 Total # of participating entities
offering supplemental death to retirees 714
Ci ific;
2 Jacksboro offers supplemental death to:
active employees (yes/no) Yes
retirees (yes/no) Yes

Funding Policy. Participating cities are contractually required to contribute at a rate assessed
each year by the TMRS SDBF, for 2010 this was 0.35% of the annual covered payroll. The City's
contributions for the years ended September 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008 were $4,792, $5,193, and
$4,318 respectively, which equaled the required contributions each year.

ACTUARIAL INFORMATION
1 valuation date

2 Actuarial cost method

3 Amertization method

4 Amortization method

5 Assumptions
Investment return
Projected salary increases
Inflatian

6 City specific assumptions

Payroll growth assumption
Withdrawal rates far male/female

€. Restricted Assets

2009

12/31/2008

Projected Unit
Credit

Level percent of
payroll

25 years - open
pericd

4,25%
Nane
3.0%

3.0%
High/Law

Restricted assets consist of cash, and are held for specific purposes in accordance with bond covenants or
other legal restrictions. At September 30, 2010, restricted assets are comprised of the following:
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Governmental funds restricted assets:
Special revenue funds:

Hotel/motel fund 5 65,963
Court tachnology fund 26,584
Court security fund 260
Sthool safety fund 442
Crossing guard fund 5,232
Grant fund {4,580}
Debt service fund 189,965
General capital projects fund 172,740
Landfill capital projects fund 2,397
Other specific activitias 402
Total gavernmental funds restricted assets: S 459,405

Utility fund restricted assets:

Utility capital projects fund [ 983,913
Utility customer depesits 45,405
Total utility fund restricted assets: 5 1,029,318

Restrictions on General and Special Revenue Funds are restricted to the respective reserve fund balances
within those funds, pending expenditure for the purpose for which those cash accounts were intended.
These restrictions generally do not extend to the segregation of cash; however, interest-bearing accounts
and/or interest income allocation are required under certain programs.

Transfers
Transfers are indicative of funding for capital projects, lease payments, debt service, subsidies of various

City operations and re-allocations of special revenues. The following schedule briefly summarizes the
City’s transfer activity:

Transfer from Transfer to Amount Purpose
Provide subsidy to cover City
Proprietary Funds General Fund $350,000 operations
Transfer to pay for general long-
Proprietary Funds General Debt Service Fund 5468,732 term debt
Partial costs of the Gulf Texas and
Hotel/Motel Tax Fund General Fund $ 24,495 Western Railroad Depot
Matching portion of an
General Fund Grant Fund S 8,100 intergovernmental grant

The following schedule presents significant transactions between the primary government and its
component unit during the year ended September 30, 2010.

Component Unit Significant Transactions
Jacksboro Economic Development Corporation  Transfer of sales tax revenues from the general fund to
the JEDC in the amount of 239,837, of which $35,091
is due from the primary government at September 30,
2010.
Jacksboro Economic Development corporation  Transfer of depot building, valued at $507,182, from
the IEDC to the general fund.
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E.

Jacksbhoro Economic Development Corporation

Jacksboro Economic Development Corporation (JEDC) was established under the provisions of Section 4B
of the Development Corporation Act of 1979 as a Texas Municipal Corporation. IEDC was organized

specifically for public purposes to study and fund permissible projects prescribed in the Development
Corporation Act.

Discrete methodology is used to present the JEDC in the financial statements of the City of Jacksbora.
This methodology was selected after evaluation of all the circumstances and available standards.

JEDC is supported principally through the collection of a one-half percent sales tax on goods and services
sold within the City of Jacksboro, Texas. These taxes are collected by the State of Texas, remitted to the
City of Jacksboro, and then distributed to the Corporation by the City offices. The JEDC records all sales
taxes earned during the fiscal year as revenue when earned and available.

As of September 30, 2010, the carrying amount of the Corparation’s deposits was $859,823 and the bank
balance was $890,655. Of the Corporation’s cash deposits at September 30, 2010 and during the year
then ended, $250,000 was covered by FDIC insurance.

Capital Asset Activity:

Governmantal Activitles: Bapinning Balance Incrpasas Decreases Ending Balance

Capital assets, not heing depreciated:

Land s 539,678 s - s - S 539,678
JEDC capital assets, net $ 539,678 s - 5 - 8 539,678
Long Term Debt Activity:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance lncreases Decreasas Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:

Nate Payable -TIB $ 375000 5 - ] {75,000} & 200,000 ] 75,000

Total Governmental Activities: 5 375,000 5 - ] {75000) S 300,000 $ 75,000

Annual debt service requirements are as follows:

Total
Years ending Segtember 30: Principal Interest Requireameants
2011 § 75,000 ] 15,000 s 90,000
20132 75,000 11,250 88,250
2013 75,000 7,500 82,500
2014 75,000 3,750 78,750
S 300,000 % 37,500 5§ 337,500
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

F.

Commitments and Contingencies

The City is subject to claims and lawsuits which arise primarily in the ordinary course of business. It is the
opinion of management and the Council that the disposition or ultimate resolution of such claims and
lawsuits wiil not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the City.

The City participates in certain federal and state assisted grant programs. Those programs are subject to

program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Any liability for reimbursement
which may arise as the result of these audits is not believed to be material,
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



Actual
Valuation
Date

12/31/2007
12/31/2008
12/31/2009

Actuarial
Value of
Assats

(a)

$ 2,381,035
2,553,400
2,762,364

$

Required Supplementary Information

Employee Retirement Plan
Schedule of Funding Progress for TMRS

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability [AAL}
-~Entry Age
{b)

3,847,069
3,961,857

4,178,878
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Unfunded
AAL
{UAAL)
{b-a}

1,466,034
1,408,457
1,416,514

Funded
Ratlio
{a/b)

61.9%
64.4%
66.1%

$

Covered
Payroll
(e}

1,514,085
1,233,716
1,268,442

UAAL as a
Parcentage
of Coverad

Payroll
({b-a) / c)

56.8%
114.2%
111.7%



COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL
FUND STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES
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REVENLUES
Taxes:
Property taxes
Delinquent taxes
Penalty and interest
interest income
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal retirement
Interest
Paying agent fees
Total expenditures
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Total other financing sources and uses
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - heginning
Fund balances - ending

City of Jackshoro, Texas

General Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budgetary and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

Variance with
Final Budget -
Positive
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts {Negative}
QOriginal Final

5 621,000 5 621,000 3 635,359 3 14,359

- - 18,318 18,318

- - 4,111 4,111
8.000 8.000 2,388 (5,602)

£29,000 £29.000 660,186 31,186

967,028 967,928 656,010 311,918
318,322 318,322 433,460 (115,138)

4,500 4,500 580 3,820

1,290,750 1,280,750 1,080,050 200,700

{661,750) (661.750) (429,864} 231,886
662,525 662,525 468,732 {193,783)
662,525 662,525 468,732 {193,793}

775 775 38,868 38,093

147,402 147,402 147,402 -

5 148,177 5 148,177 5 186,270 § 38,093
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City of Jackshoro, Texas

Hotel/Motel Tax Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budgetary and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

REVENUES
Taxes:
Franchise
Interest income
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under)
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out
Teial other financing sources and uses
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

Variance with

Final Budget -
Positive
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts {Negative)
Original Final

3 20,000 $ 20,000 3 26,782 5 6,782
1,000 1,000 242 {758)

21,000 21,000 27,024 6,024

5,000 5,000 38,413 {33.413)

5,000 5,000 38,413 {33.413)

16,000 16,000 (11,389} {27,389)

{22,500} {32,500} (24,495) 8,005

{23,500) (32,500} (24,495} 8,005
(6,500) {16,500) (35,884} {19,384)

106,932 106,932 106,932 -
§ 100,432 5 90,432 3 71,048 3 {19,384)
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City of Jacksboro, Texas

Court Technolagy Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budgetary and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

REVENUES

Court fines

Interest income
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expendiures

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

Variance with

Final Budget -
Paositive
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amournts {Negative}
QOriginal Final
5 3,000 3000 S 2088 5§ (914)
300 304 83 {207)
3,300 3,300 2,178 (1.121)
2,200 2,200 2,208 (98)
2,200 2,200 2,288 (98)
1.100 1,100 {119) (1.219
1,100 1,100 {119) (1,219
24,405 24,405 24,405 -
E 25,505 25505 § 24286 5 (1,219
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City of Jacksboro, Texas
Court Security Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budgetary and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

REVENUES

Court fines

Interest income
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balznces - ending

Variance with
Final Budget -
Positive
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts {Negative)
Originai Final
S 85 a5 3 120 3 35
5 5 1 (4)
90 a0 121 31
50 a0 121 3N
90 a0 121 31
139 139 139 -
H 229 229 5 260 3 3
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City of Jacksboro, Texas
School Safety Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budgetary and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

REVENUES

Court fines

Interest income
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Generzl government
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expendituras

Net ehange in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

Variance with

Final Budget -
Positive
Budgeted Amountis Actual Amounts {Negative)
Qriginal Final
¥ 400 400 & 325 5 (75)
10 10 1 (9)
410 410 326 (B4)
- - o7 (87)
- - a7 {97)
410 410 229 (181)
410 410 229 (181)
213 213 213 -
b 623 623 § 442 & (181)
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City of Jacksboro, Texas

Crossing Guard Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budgetary and Actuat
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

Variance with

Final Budget -
Positive
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts {Negative)
Original Final
REVENUES
Caourt fines 5 400 400 kS 450 3 50
Interest income 50 50 16 (34)
Total revenues 450 450 466 16
EXPENDITURES
Total expenditures - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures 450 450 466 16
Net change in fund balances 450 450 466 16
Fund balances - beginning 4,765 4,766 4,766 -
Fund balances - ending 5 5,216 5,218 ] 5,232 S 16
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City of Jackshoro, Texas
Grant Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budgetary and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

Variance with

Final Budget -
Positive
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts {Negative)
Original Final
REVENUES
Intergovernmental 5 38,030 k] 38,030 ] 19,350 5 {18,680}
Total revenues 38,030 38,030 19,350 {18,680}
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Public safety 23,030 23,030 30,163 {7,133)
Tatal expenditures 23,030 23,030 30,163 (7,133)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under}
expendilures 15,000 15,000 {10,813) (25,813
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Transfers in 16,200 16,200 B,100 {8,100
Total other financing sources and uses 16,200 16,200 8,100 {8,100
Net change in fund balances 31,200 31,200 {2,713) (33,913)
Fund balances - beginning 1,883 1,883 1,883 -
Fund balances - ending 3 33,083 3 33,083 3 (830} 8 (33.913)
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City of Jacksbharo, Texas
General Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budgetary and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

Variance with

Final Budget -
Positive
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts {Negative)
Qriginal Final
REVENUES
Interest income b - 3 - 5 459 5 459
Miscellaneous - - 1,000 1,000
Total revenues - - 1,459 1,459
EXPENBITURES
General Government - - 51,488 (51,488)
Capital outlay - - 30,000 (30,000)
Total expenditures - - 81,488 (81,488)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures - - {80,028} (80,029)
Net change in fund balances - - {80,029} (80,029)
Fund balances - beginning 251,169 251,169 251,169 -
Fund balances - ending 3 251,169 5 251,168 5 171,140 5 (80,029)
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City of Jacksboro, Texas
Landfill Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budgetary and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

REVENUES
Interest income

EXPENDITURES
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

Variance with

Final Budget -
Positive
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts {Negative)
Original Finai

§ - 5 - 8 4 5 4
- - 4 4

- - 4 4

2,383 2,393 2,303 -

§ 2,393 § 2,393 3 2,397 5 4

62



Jacksboro Economic Development Corporation
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2010

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Recelvables (net of allowance for uncollectables)
Bue from primary government
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Total liabilities

Fund balance:
Unreserved
Total fund balance
Total liabilities and fund balance
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JEDC General Fund

5 850,823
35,834
35,001

930,748

15,105

15,105

915,643

915,643

S 930,748




Jacksboro Economic Development Corparation
Recanciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets
Governmental Funds
Septemhber 30, 2010

Amaounis reported for governmental activities in tha staternent of net assets ara different because:

Fund batance S 915,643
Capital assets used In governmental activities are not financial resources ang, therefare, are not reported in the funds. 538,678
tong-term llabilities, including notes payable, are not due and payable in the current period and, therefare, are not reported in the {300,000)
funds.

Sarne payables reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resaurces and, therefore, are not reported

as payables in gavernmental funds, 11,250)
Net assets of governmental activities 5 1,154,071
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Jackshoro Economic Development Corporation
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts

Actual Amounts Variance with
Original Final JEDC General Fund Final Budgat
REVENUES
Sales tax 5 340,000 S 340,000 3 239,837 S (100,163)
inferest income 2,500 2,500 4,420 1,920
Miscelianeous - - 26,044 26,044
Total revenues 342,500 342,500 270,301 {72,159)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 683,000 683,000 786,932 (103,932)
Debt service:
Note principat 89,084 89,084 75,000 14,084
Note interest 10,916 10,916 20,000 {3,084}
Total expenditures 783,000 783,000 881,832 {98,932}
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over (under}
expenditures (440,500) (440,500) (611,631) {171,131}
Net change in fund balances (440,500) (440,500) (611,631) (171,131}
Fund kalances - beginning 1,527,274 1,527,274 1,527,274 -
Fund balances - ending S 1,086,774 § 1,086,774 5 915,643 5 {171,131}
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tacksboro Economie Development Carpaoration
Reconclilation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To tha Statemeant of Activities
September 30, 2010

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because;

Net change In fund balances - total governmental funds § 611,631}
The retirement of long-term debt {e.g., notes payable) provides eurrent financial resourees to governmental funds 75,000
Interest expense in the statement of activities s different than interest expense in the gavernment funds, 1,234

Change in net assets of governmantal activities 5 {535,397)
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(UNAUDITED)



Statistical Section

This part of the City of Jacksboro's comprehensive annual financial report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, required supplementary information and supplementary

information says about the City's overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information fo help the reader
understand how the City's financial performance and well-being
have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess
the significant local revenue sources.

Debt Capacity
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to
help the reader assess the affordability of the City's current levels
of outstanding debt and the City's ability fo issue additional debt
in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to
help the reader understand the environment within which the City's
financial activities take place and fo help make comparisons over
fime and with other governments.

Operating Information
These schedules contfain information about the City's operations
and resources to help the reader understand how the city's financial
information relates to the services the city provides and the activities
it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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CITY OF JACKSBORQ, TEXAS Table 12
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBRT
As of Septemeber 30, 2010
{Unaudited)
Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit Quistanding Applicable Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes
Jack County 5 6,500,000 15.78% $ 1,025,700
Jacksboro Independent School District 486,802,000 23.33% 10,918,907
Subtotal, overlapping debt 11,944,607
City of Jacksboro (direct debt) 7,337,029 100.00% 7,337,029
Total direct and overlapping debt $ 19,281,636

Source: Debt outstanding data provided by each governmental unit.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE SECTION



CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
CONSULTANTS

Independent Auditor's Report

Report on Internal Coentrol over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

City Council
City of Jackshoro, Texas
Jacksboro, Texas

Members of the City Council:

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Jacksboro, Texas as of and for the year ended September 30, 2010, which collectively
comprise the City of Jacksboro, Texas' basic financial statements and have issued our repart thereon
dated March 2, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,

internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Jacksboro, Texas' internal contral over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City of Jacksboro, Texas' internal contro! over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Jacksboro, Texas’ internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does nat allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financia! statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis,

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Jacksboro, Texas' financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The resuits of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the organization
and the City Council, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties,

MWH GROUP, P.C.

Wichita Falls, Texas
March 2, 2011
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CITY OF JACKSBORO, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

A, Summary of Auditor's Results

1. Financial Statements
Type of auditor's repaort issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? __Yes _ X No

Reportable condition(s) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X__ None Reported

Noncempliance material to financial
statements noted? Yes X __ No

B. Financial Statement Findings

None
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